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2022 snapshots

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,458,967 4,404,908 1,587,328 6,078,045 5,833,758
Current Assets 28,327,378 34,581,358 34,891,310 41,727,544 45,181,332
Naon - Current Assets 3,523,880 4268115 3,880198 8482815 15,825,843
Totol Assets 31,851,259 38,849,513 38,871,508 50,180,458 62,017,175
Current Ligbilities 20,247.477 23,150,505 22327243 27,697,928 33,749,768
Naon - Current Ligbilities 146,536 249404 201,51 568,827 1,422,732
Total Liabilities 20,384 N3 23,495,909 22,528,754 28,266,755 35,172,500
Shareholders Equity 1,457,146 15,348,604 16,342,754 21,923,704 26,844,675
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CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
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DUMITH FERNANDO
Chairperson

Dedar Sharehaolders,

On behall of the Board of Directors, Management and Staff of FijiCare Insurance Limited (*FiiiCare”) Group, | take this
oppartunity to present to you the 2022 Annual Report of the FijiCare Graup for the financial year ending 3lst Decembear
2022

| am pledsed to report that despite challenges from the COVIE-12 pandemic and the global market volatilities, the
FljiCare Group has delivered a solid and resilient operational and financial performance. We are extremely thankful for
and appreciative of the continued support and solldarity from our employees, customers, partrers, and Stakeholders
shown during o challenging year.

FliCare commeamorated its 30 years of service in 2022 The highlight of the 30th anniversary waos our celebration of the
achlevements of the Group and recognizing the long serving staff of FijiCare, who are ot the forefront of the company's
success, as well as our loyal customer base,

While global economic performaonce remained subdued due to the spillover impact of the pandemic and geapaolitics,
the Fijian economy continued torecoverin 2022 bolstered by the [ifting of pandemic-related restrictions, the resump-
tion of international travet and tourist activities, and growth-friendly fiscal and monetary policies.

With the Fijian economy rebounding from the pandemic in 2022, FijiCare Group recorded a consolidated profit aftes
income tax of FJ55.9m comparad to FISEIm in 2021 The solid performance delivered was driven by a record increase
in gross written premiun for the Group from FJIS38.0m in 2021 to FIS50.5m in 2022 financial period as well as the
efficient use of assets to diversify the Group s investment portfolio. in 2022, the Group hos also paid o total of $33.8m
in claims compared to $19.8m in the pravious year to our policy holderswhich equates to over 145,000 clairms applica-
tiong processed over the 2022 financial period. While the record number of payouts was anticipated as an onflow from
2021 tor detayed medical treatments and procedures due to COVID travel restrictions; we are pleased to have main-
tained a payout ratio of 97% from the total claims lodged for processing. Based on this, the Group's cansolidatad Net
Assets and Shareholders Equity position improved to FIS26.8m in 2022 from FJS21.9m at the end of 2021

Cur VanCare subsidiory cperating in Vonuaotu continues to perform well with stable revenue stream ond continued
profitability. The VanCare business is primarily based on Compulsory Third Party (CTP) and Comprehensive Motor
Insurance with Medical insurance coverage as well, While we have witnessed resiiient performance from VanCare
aver the years, we are cautiously menitoring the glabal market volatilittes and loeal market situotion in Vanuotu and
its subsequent impoct on the subsidiory's operations and performaonce

FijiCare has established a strong reputation for innovation and technology driven solutions to improve systems and
averall customer experlences. In 2022, our efforts were recognized with two international awards by the International
Business Magazine 2022, nomely the Best Digital Insurance Iinitiative — Fiji and the Best Health Insurance Provider — Fiji
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Insurance Initiative Fiji Insurance Provider Fiji

2022 2022
International Business Magazine Awards 2022

New Insurance Digital Insurance
Product of the Year Initiative of the Year
2021 2021

Insurance Asia Awards 2021
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Spotlight Award Reuben James Summerlin
Innovator of the Year Innovation of the Year
2019 2018

SPX Annual Award 2018 Pacific Financial Inclusion Frogram 2018
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BRINGING A RANGE OF

INSURANCE PRODUCTS
TO PROTECT YOU AT EVERY STEP OF LIFE

Motor Health
Insurance Insurance

Covid-19
Travel

Microinsurance
-, Insurance

I WE'VE
' GOTYOU
. COVERED!

. Personal
\, Accident

/

TermLife /
/

\ public Liability

WageCare  / -

Mortgage

THINK INSURANCE
THINK FIJICARE

o ,.:' Wisit L -
‘.ﬂ;‘ www. fijicare.com.fj
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Board of Directors

DUMITH
FERNANDO

Independent Chairperson

Mr. Dumith Fernando is the Chairman of Asia Securities Holdings (Pvt) Ltd, a Ieading independent
Investment Bank in Sri Lanka, He served as the Chairman of the Colombe Stock Exchange (CSE) from
2020-2022. Mr. Fernando has almaost three decades of experience in international investment banking,
based in New York and Hong Kong with global banks JPMorgan Chase & Co. and Credit Suisse AG. Until
2013, he was the Managing Director and Group Chief Operating Officer for Credit Suisse Asia Pacific. He
worked at Credit Suisse from 2007 until 2013 and ot JPMorgan from 1895 until 2007 in roles across
Investment Banking, Equities, Private Equity and Corporate Strategy.

Mr. Fernando is an Indendent Director of Sri Lankon listed firms Union Assuronce PLC and Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC, ond a member of the Economic Policy Steering Commiittee of the Ceylon Chamber of Com-

merce. He holds g BA in Physics & Economics from Middlebury College in the U.S. and an MBA from Har-
vard Business School,

Annual Report 2022

14



#FijiCare .

AVi
RAJU

Executive Director

Mr. Avi Raju is the Founder and Managing Director of the Mount Sophia Group, a Hong Kong based private
investment group with investments globally. Over the last 5 years, he has focused his investments in Fifj,
his birthplace. He now has investments in insurance, health care, real estate and technology sectors in
Fifi. Mr. Raju has over two decades of experience working in the technology, real estate and investment
industries in the Asio Pocific region. Until May 2014, Mr. Raju was the Chiel Information Officer for Asia
Pacific at Savills Limited, an international property services group listed on the London Stock Exchange.
He was responsible for the strategic development and management of business systems across all of
Savills' 15 Asion offices with over 17,000 employees.

Mr. Avi Roju has o Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the Richard Ivey School of Business
(University of Western Ontario, Canada) and a Bachelors' Degree in Commerce from the University of
Auckland, New Zealand. Mr. Raju was born in Fiji and currently resides in Singapore. Prior to Singapore, he
has lived and worked in Hong Kong, Australio and New Zealand

Annual Report 2022
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Board of Directors

McPHERSON

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Peler McPhearson is the owner and Director of Premium Care Medicgl Centre Ple Limited. He was the
author of a thesis on "Death Factors in Fiji" which was published in medical journals in Fiji, New Zealand
ond Australio. He has over 50 years of insurance experience wheraby his first employment was with Reed
Insurance Brokers from 1870 to 1982 following which he joined Zurich Australia Insurance from 1882 to 1997
Mr. McPherson also serves aos the Non- Executive Director of VanCare Insurance Limited. He has servad as
the President of Insurance Council in the past

Mr. McPherson had numerous managerial roles at Zurich with his last role being National Bevelopment
Manager for Australia, New Zealand, PMG and Solomon islands. In October 1887 he joined FijiCare as
Managing Director and since then he has been based in Fiji for more than 20 years and is a Fiji citizen, He
has a wealth of knowledge in medical and general insurance. Mr. McPherson was instrumental in the
design and implementation of the Pocific’s first bundled micro insurance product, He was born in

Gosford, New South Wales, Australio and holds a Master of Monagement from the University of Western
Sydney

b i

Annual Report 2022

16



Annual Report 2022

17

Board of Directors

JENNY
SEETO

Independent Director

Ms. Seeto is the Chairperson of Investment Fiji. She has extensive experience in the areas of governance
and risk management, having spent almost 40 years at PricewalterhouseCoopers where she was Senior
Partner until har retirement in 2017. Ms. Seesto hos provided audit, taxation, human resources and other
advisory services to a diverse range of international and local clients in various sectors of the economy
including broking and insurance companies and financial institutions. She also contributed to the
amendments to the insurance Act and other legislation affecting the finance and credit sectors

Ms. Seeto holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accounting and Economics from the University of the South
Pacific. She holds a Cartificate of Public Practice from the Fjl Institute of Accountants, Ms. Seeto hos also
been bestowed with nationol awards for her contributions towards the economic development across
different sectors.
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Board of Directors

SYLVAIN
FLORE

Independent Director

Mr. Flore has over 48 years' experience in the insurance industry. Mr. Flore hos served as the Chief
Executive Officer for the QBE Asia Pacific region and as a member of their Divisional Executive team
ovarseeing their operations in Fiji, French Polynesio, New Caoledonio, Papua New Guineg, Solomon Islonds
and Vonuatu, Over his career, Mr. Flore hos setved in various senior roles in Mauritius, Australio aond the
Pacific region in the insurance industry

He is a Chartered Insurer from the Chartered Insurance Institute (UK) and an Associate Fellow of the
Australian institute of Monagement
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Annual Report 2022

18



MFijiCare

IRENMASTE LINTTER

W -
L] 2 ‘ ¥
}.;_
A
..-

ij | \\; \‘

Be smart and travel
hassle-free with

FijiCare Covid-19
Travel Insurance

*Our Insurance policy is available in
Outbound and Inbound plans

O +679 330 2717
bed customercare@fijivisitorsinsurance.com

Visit Now: www. fijivisitorsinsurance.com Followus: QO © O
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Senior Management

“The Function of leadership
is to produce more leaders
not more followers.”

o
N
o
N
S
@)
Q.
®
(0%
O
5
C
C
<

21




LAk L LIMITED

#FijiCare

Senior Management

MS. KRISHIKA NARAYAN

GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Ms. Krishika Narayan is the Group Chief Operating Officer for FijiCare Insurance Limited since 2020,
where she oversees the overall management of the company. Before joining FIL, Ms. Narayan
served as the Chief Executive Officer of the South Pacific Stock Exchange for 3 years of her over |l
yedrs tenure, Ms, Narayan has extensive knowledge and experience in the financial sector,
specializing in Legal, Operations, Governance, Administration and Communications.

Ms. Narayan serves on various boards and committees as the Chairperson or as a Director. Ms.
Maroyan holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree and a Post Graduate Certificate in Financial
Administration from the University of the South Pacific. She olso serves os a member on the
Caopital Markets Development Taskforce established by the Reserve Bank of Fiji. In 2021, Ms.
Narayan was appeinted to the board of VanCare Insurance Limited. She is also the Executive
Director of OmniCare Pte Limited troding as MIOT Pacific Medical.
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MR. RONALD NARAYAN

GROUP CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Mr. Ronald Narayan is the Group Chief Information Cfficer for FijiCare Insurance Limited since
2020, where he oversees the management of the FIL Claims Function as well as the
implementation of its innovative IT framework. Mr. Ronald Narayan joined the Company Finance
Department in the year 2000 ond was promoted to IT Manager in 2010. He has over 19 years of
extensive work experience in the Finance Department and has been actively heading FijiCare’s
digitization and IT implementation process.

He has been leading the Company's innovative IT transformation and is at the forefront of all
regional and international projects. Mr. Narayan has a Diploma in Financial Planning ANZIIF (Snr
Associate) CIP and holds an MBA from the University of the South Pacific. He serves as the Director
for WeCare Ple Limited.
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MR. VICTOR ROBERT

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Victor Robert is the Group Chief Financlal Officer for FijiCare Insurance Limited since 2020. He
has over two decades of extensive financial expertise working for FIL as part of the senior
leadership team in the role of both Finance Manager and Company Secretary. Mr. Robert leads
the charge in managing the financials of FjiCare Insurance Llimited and its subsidiaries. He is the
Executive Director for VanCare Insurance Limited. Mr. Robert also serves as the Director for
OmniCare Pte Limited trading as MIOT Paocific Medical. As the Finance |ead, Mr. Robert oversees
the Finance function at FijiCare Insurance limited and its subsidiaries while providing sound
financial advice to the Board.

He holds a Diploma in Accounting from the University of the South Pacific and a Diploma in
Financial Planning ANZIIF (Snr Associate) CIP in addition to an MBA from the University of the South
Pacific.
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MS. SIMA MALA

GROUP CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER

Ms. Sima Mala is the Group Chief Marketing Officer for FijiCare Insurance Limited since 2023, where
she oversees the marketing and motor insurance function of the company. Ms. Sima Mala has
been with FijiCare for 20 years now. She has experience in marketing, claims, and underwriting.
Over the lost 13 years, Ms. Mala hos been heading the mator division of FijiCare in which
meaningful growth in market share has taken ploce.

She has also been working closely with senior maonagement in the role of Manager Marketing
since 2020 playing an instrumental role in the success and growth of the company aver the past
few years before the traonsition to the C-5Suite role.
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FIJICARE
NTRODUCED
PACIFIC'S FIRST
PARAMETRIC
MICROINSURANCE

CLIMATECARE
BE CLIMATE SMART

An Innovative insurance solution
contributing to sustainable
development goals 74
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MFijiCare
Corporate Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE, LEADERSHIP & ACCOUNTABILITY

FijiCare Insurance timited ('FIL', ‘Company’) remains steadfast in its commitment to develop and maintain
o strong governance framewaork that is consistent with industry best practice, throughout the Group,
recognising that good corporate governance is vital to assist Management in their delivery of the Compa-
ny's strategic objectives, ond to operate a sustainable business for the benefit of all stakeholders. FIl's
approach to corporate governance is based on a set of values and behaviours that underpin our
day-to-day activities, and are designed to promote transparency, innovation, fair deoling, and the protec-
tion of stakeholder interests, including our customers, our shareholders, our employees, and our communi-
ty. it includes aspiring to the highest stondards of corporate governance, which FIL sees as fundamental to
the sustainability of our business and our performance.

FIL reports to the Reserve Bank of Fiji ('RBF’) as a Financial Institution designated under the Reserve Bank of
Fiji Act 19E3, and the South Pacific Stock Exchange ('sPx') as a Publicly Listed Company. As such, FIL is gov-
erned by the Insurance Act 1985, the RBF's twelve Insurance Supervision Policy Statements, Prudential
Supervision Palicy Statements, ond ocddendum guidance notes, as wel as the SPX's Continuing Listing
Rules (subsumed within the Listing Rules) and the Companies Act 2015.
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Principle Requirement Compliance Status
1. Establish Clear Separation of duties: Clear |The Board derives its mandate from the
Responsibilities for separation of duties between |Board Charter and is governed by Fil's

Board Oversight Board and Senior Management, Arlicies of Associolion.

Regulatory Guidance

According to the RBF's Prudential Supervi-
sion Policy Staterment No. 1 - Minimum
Reqguirements for Corporate Governance
of Licensed Entities ('PSPS I'), the minimum
responsibilities of the Board encompass
reviewing the Company's organisational
structure, overseeing the implementation
of the Company’s governance framework
and fts adherence to current legislative
and regulatory norms, as well as other
brood roles outlined in section 5.1.5 of PSPS
1.

To this effect, FIL has implemented a Cor-
porate Governance Charter which fairly
incorporates the reguirements of PSPS |
Senior Management, headed by the Exec-
utive Director, aossist the Board with the
operational running of the company.

These reguireaments have also been incor-
porated into FIL's Board Charter.

Board Charter. Adopt a Board |BOARD CHARTER
Charter detailing functions and
responsibilities of the Board. The Board Charter clearly articulates the
division of responsibilities between the
Board and Senior Management, in order to
manage expectations and avoid misun-
derstandings about their respective roles
and accountabllities.

The Board Is responsible for the oversight
of FIL and its sound and prudent manage-
ment, with specific duties as set out In its
Charter. The Directors employ a proactive,
dynamic; and hands-on approach in their
role to ensure the maintenance of the
highest ethical standards and business
success. The Board Charter clearly identi-
fies the Board's roles aond responsibilities
as follows:

N
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Principle Requirement Compliance Status

» Overseeing the effective monagement
ond control of FIL;

» Ensuring thaot new Board members
underge adequate induction training
ond are fully cognisant of their respec-
tive duties and responsibilities, as wall
os ensuring thot a formal programme
of professional ongoing development
ond troining is set up;

« Setting up ond reviewing the strategic
direction of FIL;

» Approving and meonitering of key bud-
gets, business plans, financial state-
ments, financial policies and financial
reporting;

» Developing and implementing key
corporate  policies, procedures and
controls as necessary o ensure appro-
priate standards of accountability, risk
management: and corporgte gover-
nance;

» Dverseeing the adequocy of manageri-
al resources to ensure there is ade-
guate depth of resources and appro-
priate succession planning;

= Approving proposals for major new
investments, capital expenditure and
capital management initiatives as pro-
posed by management; and

+ Ensuring that Shareholders receive high
guality, relevant and accurate informa-
tion in a timely manner and that Inves-
tors generally are able to trade in the
Company’s securities in a market which
is efficient, competitive and informed.

2. Constitute an Board Composition: Bolanced | The Board, supported by its three subcom-
Effective Board Boord Composition with Exec- | mittees, is tosked with a brood purpose to
utive and Non-Executive Direc- | cover its strategic direction, maointain
tors of which 1/3rd of total | accountability, and ensure the sustainable
number of directors to be Inde- | growth and financial soundness of the
pendent Directors. Company. Above all, it is responsible to its

Shareholders for upholding good corpo-
rate governance practices throughout the
Company whilst increasing shareholder
value and optimising compadny perfor-
mance.
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Principle

Requirement

Compliance Status

In 2022, the Board comprised of 5 Directors,
who were appointed by FIL's shareholders
and through the auspices of FiL's Articles of
Association. The oppointments were all
made in accordance with the Companies
Act 2015, The Boord currently consists of:

Mr. Dumith Fernando - Chalrperson

Mr. Avinesh Raju — Executive Director

Mr. Peter McPherson = Non-Executive
Directar

Mr. Sylvian Flore = Independent Director
Ms. Jenny Seeto - Independent Director
The Directors each bring with them a vast
and varied reserve of experience, speciall-
sation, ond knowledge in their respective
fieids, ranging frem Insurance & Com-
merce, Information Technology, Business

Strategy, Governance and Risk Manoge-
ment.

Gender Diversity: Do you have a
policy for promoting gender
diversity ot Board level and have
you achieved your policy goals?

The Board Charter makes provisions for
gender diversity at the Board level Ms.
Jenny Sesto is the first female director to
serve on the FijiCare Board

Momination Committee: Selec-
tion, approval, renewal and suc-
cession of Directors to be con-
ducted by Nomination Commit-
tee in accordance with Articles of
Association of the Company and
Fit and Proper Policy of Reserve
Bonk.

Although FijiCare hos not established a
separate Nominotion Committee, its Gov-
ernance & Risk Management Committee
has been charged with the responsibility
of selection, approval, renewal, and suc-
cession of directars in line with the Com-
pany's Articles of Association and Board
Charter

Board Evaluation: Process of
evaluation of performaonce of the
Board, its Committees and indi-
vidual directors. Evaluation to be
linked to key performaonce indi-
cators of Lhe listed entity.

The Board Evaluation process is outlined in
the Board Chorter. The provisions of the
Board Charter provides avenues for both
internal ond external evoluation ot its
dizcretion.

Directors  Trgining: Directors’
training and induction procedure
to be in place to allow new direc-
tors to participate fully and effec-
tively,

The Board Charter makes provisions for
Directors' training.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principle

Requirement

Compliance Status

The Board haos established the following
sub-committees:

= Audit Committes;

« Governance & Risk Management Com-
mittes; and

» Treasury & Investment Committee

3. Appointment of
Chief Executive Offi-
cer/ Managing Direc-
tor

CED; To appoint a suitably quali-
fied and competent Chief Execu-
tive Officer [ Managing Director.

The Executive Director has been appointed
in line with the Boord Chorter require-
ments,

4. Appointment of a

Company Secratary. Boord to

FIL has appointed o Company Secretary in

balanced disclosure

Timely ond occurate disciosures
are made in Annual reports as
per Rule 51 of Listing Rules.

Board and Company appoint a suitably qualified aond | line with the requirements outlined in the
Secretary competent Compony Secretary, | Board Charter, who reports to the Board as
who Is accountoble to the Board, | per his dulies.
through Chuair, for all compliance
ond governance |ssues.
5. Timely and Annuol Reports: Disclosures made in conformity with the

SPX Listing Rules.

Payment to Directors and Senior
moanagement

Sufficient information to be pro-
vided to shareholdars on remu-
neration paid to Directors and
Senior Management.

The Annual Report summarizes this infor-
mation, in accordance with the Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards.

Continuous Disclosure:

General disclosures or company
announcements to be made ina
timaly manner. The disclosures
should be factual without omit-
ting material infermaotion ond to
be expressed in o clear ond
objective: manner to sharehold-
Brs.

Disclosures made in conformity with the
SPX Listing Rules, FIL tokes g prooctive
stance on this, and proctices dissemina-
tion of continuous disclosures on anongo-
ing basis.

6. Promote ethical and
responsible deci-
sion=-making

Code of Conduct:

To establish a minimum Code of
Conduct of the listed entity appli-
cable to directors, senior man-
agement and employees and
conduct regular trainings on the
same.

In place and included in the Board Charter
and the Human Resources Framewaork.
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Principle

7. Register of Interests

Requirement
Conflicts of Interest:

Transactions with related parties
resulting in conflict of interest are
disclosed and a register is main-
tained for this purpose.

Compliance Status

Register of iInterests is in place for Board of
Directors and Staff members. A policy on
Conflict of Interest and Related Party
Transactions has been implemented.

B. Respect the rights of
shareholders

Communication with sharehold-
ers:

To design communication strat-
egy to promote effective com-
munication with shareholders
and encourage their participo-
tion. Examples. Communication
through Annual Reports, Annual
General Meetings, or any other
means of electronic communi-
cation,

Timely disclosure to all shareholders Is
done through Market Announcements.
This is subsequently shared on FijiCare
soclol media platforms.

Annual Report and Annual General Meet-
ings are also disseminated/conducted
yearly.

Websita:

To create and maintain a Web-
site of the listed entity to commu-
nicate effectively with sharehold-
ers and other staokehoiders. All
maoatters of Importance to be
updated regularly on the Web-
site.

FiL's official website: wwwi fljicarecom.fj

FIL also engenders a proactive approach
in free and mutual communication with all
its shareholders through its official Linke-
din cccount and other social media plat-
forms.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism:

To establish o Grievance Redres-
sal Mechanism for Shareholders
to oddress shareholders com-
plaints and grievances.

Shareholder Grievance Redressal Policy
has been implementad.

Shareholders’ Complaints:

To provide the number of share-
holders' comploints recelved and
attended to during the year.
Provide reasons if any complaint
is unresolved or unattended.

Mone received.

Corporate Sustainability:

To adopt o business approach
that creates long-term share-
holder walue by embracing
opportunities, managing risks,
maximising profits and minimis-
ing negative social, econemic,
and environmental impacts.

This approach is outlined in Fil's 3 year
Strategic Framework, as well as its intemal
policies. FIL has long been a proponent of
adopting innovative measures which
maximises shareholder gains - thisis illus-
trated in the lounch of Fji's first Insurance
mobile opp. FijiCare is continuously work-
ing on other digital selutions and CSR
activities, information on which is released
to the market in real time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principle

8. Accountability and
audit

Requirement
Internal Audit:

To appoint an internal auditor or
aon clternative mechanism to
ochieve the objectives of risk
management, control and gov-
ernance.

Compliance Status

FiL's Internal Audit is hondled by its Internaol
Audit Function, overseen by Fil's Internaol
Auditor = SouthPoc Advisory Limited.

External Audit:

To appoint an external auditor
who reports directly to the Board
Audit Committee.

FiL is audited annually by its external audi-
tors who provide their report to the share-
holders through the Annual Report. The
external auditors are appointed on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee
and approval by FijiCare Board.

Rotation of External Auditor:

To appoint the external ouditor
for a fixed term requiring senior
partner of the audit firm to rotate
once in every three or less finan-
cial years.

The Audit Commiltes is tosked with this
role under the Audit Committes Charter. 1L
ensures compliance with these reguire-
ments.

Audit Committee:

To establish an Audit Committee
comprising of at least 3 mem-
bers of which majority are inde-
pendent and Chair s not Chair of
the Board.

Currently in place and in compliance.

10. Risk Management

Risk Management Folicy:

To establish a Risk Management
Policy to address risk oversight,
risk management. and internal
control. The Policy to clearly
define the roles and responsibili-
ties of the Boord, Audit Commit-
tee, Management. and Internal
Audit function.

There is a Risk Management Framewark
and Risk Policy in place which demarcates
the separate but intertwined roles the
Board, Governance & Risk Management
Committee, Manogement and Internal
Audit play in the risk management of FIL. At
the managerial level, the Internal Risk
Management Committee reports to the
Governance & Risk Management Commit-
teg, which in turn reports to the Booard.

Whistle Blower Paolicy:

As port of risk management
strategy, establish a Whistle
Blower Policy by crecting o
mechanism of reporting con-
cerns of unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or
viclation of the listed entity's
code of conduct or ethics policy,
SPX Rules or Companies Act
[Refer Rule 68 of the Listing Rules]

Whistle Blower policy currently in place.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, the directors herewith submit the consolidated
statement of financial position of FjiCare Insurance Limited and its subsidiary companies (together “the
Group") as at 31 December 2022, the related consolidated statement of profit or loss and other compre-
hensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended on that date and report as follows:

Directors

The names of the directors of the Helding Company at any time during the financial year and up to the
date of this report are:

Dumith Fernando ~ Chairman Janny Seeto
Peter McPherson Sylvain Flore
Avinesh Raju

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were as follows:

Entity Principal Activities

FijiCare Insurance Limited Underwriting of medical, term life, mortgage protection, WageCare,
personal gecident, public lakility, funeral benefits, motor vehicle, para-
metric microinsurance, travel, and property (under micro insurance
project) insurance risks.

VanCare Insurance Limited | Underwriting of motor and other general insurance risks.

WeCare Pte Limited Investment in properties and real estate.

OmniCare Pte Limited Medicol ond Dioghostic Centra

There were no significant chonges in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the year.
Results

The consolidated profit after income tox was $5,833,758 (202} $6,078,045). Total consolidated compre-
hensive income for the year was $5,781,740 (2021: $6,011,333).

Dividends

The directors declared dividends of $860,7639 during the year ended 31 December 2022 out of retained
earnings.

Basis of Accounting - Going Concern

The consolidated finaoncial staternents of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors consider the application of the going concern principle to be appropriate in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements os they believe that the plans and strategies put in place by the
Group together with the ongoing support of the shareholders, the Group will generate and maintain the
required funding to meet its liabilities and commitments as and when they fall due aver the next twelve
months.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT [CONT'D]

Bad and Doubtful Debts

Prior to the completion of the consolidated financial stotements of the Group, the directors took reason-
able steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to writing off of bod debts and the making of
ailowance for doubtful debts. In the opinion of the directors, adeguate ollowadnce has been made for
doubtful debts. As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would
render the amount written off for bad debts, or the ollowonce for doubtful debts in the Group, inadequate
to any substantial extent

Current and Non-Current Assets

Prior to the completion of the consolidated financial stotements of the Group, the directors took reason-
able steps to ascertain whether any current and non-current assets were unlikely to realise in the ordinary
course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group. Where necessary, these
assets have been written down or adequate allowance has been made to bring the values of such assets
to an amount that they might be expected to realise.

As ot the daote of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the
values attributed to current and non-current assets in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
misleading.

Unusual Transactions

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group during the financial year were not
substantially aoffected by any item, transaction or event of an abnarmal character, nor has there arisen
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any itemn, transaction or event of an
abnormal character likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the opera-
tions of the Group in the current financial year.

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Subsequent to balance date in February 2023, the Government of Fiji had announced that proof of vacci-
nation or travel insurance for international travellers arriving in the country is no longer required. This will
have an impact on the revenue stream of travel insurance of the Holding Company in the subsequent
financial years.

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the finoncial year which would require
adjustmeants to, or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

Other Circumstances
As ot the date of this report

(i) no charge on the asseats of any Company in the Group has been given since the end of the financial
year to secure the liabilities of any other person;

(ii} no contingent liabilities have arisen since the end of the financial year for which any Company in the
Group could become liable; and

(i) no contingent liobilities or other liabilities of the Group have become or are likely to become enforce-
able within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not other-
wise dealt with in this report which would make adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group misleading or inappropriate.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT [CONT'D]

Directors’ Benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive o
benefit (other than thoss disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the Group) by reason of
a contract made by any Company in the Group or by a related corporation with the director or with o
firm of which hE}' she is a member, or with o Company in which hE,|" she hos a substantiol financial inter-
est.

For and on behalf of the Board ond in accordance with o resclution of the Board of Directors.

Dated this 31st day of March 2023.

Director Director
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
The declaration by directors is required by the Companies Act, 2015
The directors of the Holding Company have maode a resolution that declares:

c:) In the opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
yeor ended 3] December 2023:

i. comply with International Financial Reporting Standards and give a true and fair view of the
finoncial position of the Group os at 3] December 2022 and of the performance and cash flows
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022; and

ii. have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2015;

b) The directors have received an independence declaration by the auditors as required by Section 355
of the Companies Act, 2015; and

c) At the date of this declaration, in the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe
that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due ond payable.

For and on behalf of the Boord and in occordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Doted this 31st doy of March 2023,

Director Director
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Tek +6793314300 BDO
Fax: +679330184] Chartered Accountants

Email: info@bdo.com.fj Level 10, FNPF Place
Offices in Suva and Lautoka 343 Victoria Parade
GPO Box B55
Suva, Fiji

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS

As Group auditor for the audit of FijiCare Insurance Limited and subsidiary companies for the financial
year ended 31 December 2022, | declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have beern:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Companies Act, 2015 in rela-
tion to the audit; and

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

G2 DD~

Wathsala Suraweera
Partner
Suva, Fiji

7P
BEDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

31 March 2023

B0y, Chartarad Accountants, o Hji Bartnership, is o meamber firrm of BDO intemotiono! Limited, o UK company limited by guorantes, ond
forms part of the intermoticnal D0 network of independent membear firms.

B0 i the brand norma-for the BDO network ond for egch of the BDO Member Firmis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consoclidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial staterments of FijiCare Insurance Limited and its subsidiary
companies (“the Group”) which comprise the consolidoted statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, con-
solidated statement of changes in equity and consolidoted staterment of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significont account-
ing policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
finoncial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its finoncial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SA). Our responsibili-
ties under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Con-
solidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Accoun-
tants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirerments that are relevant to our audit of the consoli-
dated financial statements in Fijl and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the [ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient ond appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key oudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
oudit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were oddressed in
the context of cur audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

BOO, Chartered Accaountants; o Fji PFartnarship, is'a member firm of BOO Internationat Limited, o UK comipony fimitad by guarontes,
and forms part of the internotional BOO network of independent member firms,

BDO iz the brond name for the BDO netwark and for each of the BDO Mamber Firms.
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Bl INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT [CONT'D]

§ To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (Cont'd)
b Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the matter

1. Revenue Recognition

Diue to the large number of policies underwritten
by the Group there is g risk thot the revenue
recorded in the financial statements and the flow
of premium information from the underwriting
systems to the financial reporting ledger is not
complale and accurate.

2. Measurement of outstanding claims liabilities and related assets arising from reinsurance contracts and

other recoveries (511,435,051)

Refer to Note 3(j) (iv), and Note 16 to the consoli-
dated financial statements

The estimation of outstanding claims liobilities
and reloted assets, including reinsurance
assets, is a key audit matter owing to higher
degree of uncertainty that is inherent in esti-
mating the expected future payments for
cloims incurred.

in particular, judgement arises over the estima-
tion of payments for claims that have been
incurred at the reporting date but have not yet
been reported to the Group (IBNR).

There is generally less information available in
relation to these claims. Classes of business
where there is a greater length of time between
the initial claim event and settlement also tend
to display greater voriobility between initial
estimates and finol settlement

The valuation of outstanding claims relies on
the quality of the underlying data. It involves
complex and subjective judgements about
future events, both internal and external to the
business, for which changes in assumptions
can rasult in material impocts to the estimates.

The valuation of reinsurance assels requires a
significant level of judgement, given its inherent
dependence on underlying estimates of gross
cutstanding claims.

« We have tested the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of the key controls over
revenue recognition, focusing an the flow of infar-
mation from the underwriting systems to the
financial reporting ledger.

+ In addition, we performed substantive analytical
testing procedures on the gross and unearned
premium balances.

« We hove also performed substontive other audit
procedures o ensure major unearned premium
balances for their completensess and accuracy.

Appropriate cut off tests were also performed in
ensuring the recognition of revenue in the correct
gccounting period.

Our audit procedures included, amangst others:

» The-evaluation and testing of key controls around
the claims handling process of the Group. We
examined eyidence of the operation of controls
over estimating of individual claims.

» For a somple of major outstanding -claims,
performed baosis and colculations for estimaotion
of claims liabilities to gssess the reasonableness
of management’s outstanding claims: liability
colculations.

» Evaluating the effectiveness and implemento-
tion of key actuarial controls, including integrity
of the key doto used, estimates and assump-
tions made by actuary including claims ratios
ond expected frequency of claims ond manage-
ment’s review of the estimates.

+ Bvaoluating whether the Group's actuarial meth-
odologies were reosonable and censistent with
prior periods.

+ Obtaining cudit evidence over the dataond
process for estimating reinsurance recoveries on
outstonding cloims and evoluated the reason-
obility of estimates and calculations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT [CONT'D]
To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (Cont'd)

Other Information

The management and directors are responsible for the other information. The other information that we
received comprise of the information included in the Directors Report and the Annual Report of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and the auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made avaoilable to us ofter the date
af the quditor’s report

Our opinion on the consolidoted finoncial staterments does not cover the other informaotion and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incon-
sistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or other-
wise appears to be materially misstated, If, based upon the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is o moterial misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charge with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The management and directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consoli-
dated finoncial statements in accordance with IFRS and the Companies Act 2015, and for such internal
control as the management and directors determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidat-
ed financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management and directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concermn basis of accounting unless the management and directors
gither intend to liguidate the Compony in the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reparting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtoin reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financiol statements
as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraoud or error, and to Issue aon auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that on audit conducted in accordance with 154 will alwaoys detect o material misstotement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggre-
gate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users token on the basis
of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an gudit in accordance with 1SA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinfon. The risk of
not detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal cantrol.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT [CONT'D]
| To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (cont'd)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of occounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the maonogement's and directors’ use of the going concemn
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the reloted disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, If such
disclosures, are inadeguate, to modify cur opinion. Our conelusions are based on the oudit avidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

= BEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underly-
ing transoctions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding Group's financial information to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial staterments. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group oudit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, aomong other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter-
nal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial stotements of the current period and
are therefore the key oudit matters.

We describe these matters in our guditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the require-
ments of the Companies Act 2015 in all material respects, and;

a) we have been given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of the
audit; and

b) the Group have kept financial records sufficient to enable the consolidated financial statements to
be prepared and audited.

127D D o2 2> 5~

Wathsala Suraweera
Partner

BDO suva, Flji
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 31 March 2023
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes 2022 2021

Incurred claims (33,823,966 ) (19,876,375)
Cther direct cost - medical (249,402 } =

Commission expense B (4,007,417 ) (3170,499)

Net revenue 10,277,888 8,462,433

Other revenue 7 2,674,834 1,453,041

12,862,722 10,915,474

Advertising and promotion expenses (568,808) (229,050)
Other operating expenses (5,358,591) (4114,543)

(5,925,397) (4,343,593)

Income tax expense Bla) (893,568) (493,838)

Itemms that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss:
Exchange difference on translating foreign operation (152,.019) (66,706)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,781,740 6,011,339

Earnings per share
Easic and diluted earnings per share —cents 22 68.94 70.61

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this consolidoted statement of profit or less and
other comprehensive income,
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FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Foreign
Currency Accumulated
Translation Profits
Resarve
$
Balance os at | January 2021 5,043,662 38,515 1,260,577 16,342,754
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 6,078,045 6,078,045

Other comprehensive income for the year:
- Exchange difference on translating foreign =

: (66,708) = (66.706)
operation
Total comprehensive income = (88,706) 6,078,045 6,011,339
Transactions with owners of the Group
Dividends declared (Note 19) - - (430,389) (430,389)
Total transactions with owners of the ) ]
Sroup (430,389) (430,389)

Balance as at 3] December 2021 5,043,662 (28,191) 16,908,233 21,923,704
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FUICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Foreign

Currency Accumuiated

Translation Profits
Reserve

$

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year = = 5,933,759 5,833,799

Other comprehensive income for the year:

- Exchange difference on translating foreign .

; (152,018) - (152,019)
operation
Total comprehensive income - (152,019) 5,833,759 5,781,740
Transactions with owners of the Group
Dividends declared (Note 19) - - (B&0,769) (860,762)
Total transoctions with owners of the
Group (860,769) (860,769)
Balance as at 3] December 2022 5,043,662 (180.210) 2,981,223 26,844,675

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this consolidated statement of changes.in equity.

3 RIS 24
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 FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

] CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
b AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash on hand and ot bank

Trade and other receivables

inventory

Held <to-maturity investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Deferred costs

Notes 2022 2021
$ $

16,071,301 12,073,514

g 14,209,445 1,137,189
8,787 22,134

10(a) 10,277,804 12,973,811
10(b) 3,659,287 3,753,957
1 1,864,708 1,766,939

NOMN-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables

Held-to-maturity investments
investment properties
Froperty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

g 18,388 54,725
10{a) 2,485,122 688,962
12 10,800,998 5,949,506

13 984 732 777,207

14 444,988 443560
23(a) 1,032,354 532,47
8(c) 38,261 16,485

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Current tax liability
insurance contract liobilities

Employee entitiements
Lease liabilities

15 2141276 1,852,436
8(b) m272 182,304
16 30,861,792 25,372,461

17 206,284 165,312
23(b) 329,144 125,415

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liakilities
Deferred tax liobilities

23(b) 733,1B8 420,305
a(d) 638,544 143,518

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

Foreign currency translation reserve
Accumuloted profits

18 5,043,662 5,043,662
(180,210) (28,191)
21,981,223 16,008,233

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this consolidated statement of financial position.

For and on behalf of the Board and in accordance with o resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director

Director
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Premium and fees received 47,768,398 36,707,028
Reinsurance premium paid, net (582,072) (169,208)
Claims and commission paid, net (34099,878) (23,642,216)
Payments tosuppliers and employses (5,011,493) (3,061,708)
Cash generated from operations 8,074,957 8,833,885
Income tax paid {511,5523 -
Tax deducted at source-resident interest withholding tax (33,696 (39,882)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (52,120) (1,754)
Interest received 407,440 441,020
Grant received 133,855 =
Met cash provided by operating activities 8,018,884 10,223,179
Payment for investment properties (3,143,328) (3,047,442)
Payments for property, plant and equipment (124,921) (632,447)
Payments for intangible assets (239,690) (268,981)
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 64,100
Paoyments for held-to-maturity investments (9,397,797) (13173,81)
Proceeds from held-to-maturity investments 10,277,804 13,322.115
Dividends received 58,179 3012
Proceed from sale of shares ~ 349108
Payment for purchase of shares (8,507) (6,419)
Payment for lease liability (279,41) (151,325)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,927,671 (3,514,8980)
Cash flows from financing activities cc:.ll
Dividends paid (860,769 (430,389) E
Net cash used in financing activities (860,769 (430,389) =
| | @]
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,230,444 6,277,800 N
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash and cash )
equivalents (232,857) (121,575) o
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,073,514 5,917,289 g
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 21) 16,071,301 12,073,514 E
<

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this consolidoted statement of cash flows.
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMNIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTEL. GENERAL INFORMATION

a) Corporate Information

FijiCare Insurance Limited (the Holding Company) Is a licensed general insurance and publicly listed
company on South Pacific Stock Exchange, limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Fiji.

The registered office and principal ploce of business of the Holding Company Is located at Level 9, FNPF
Place, 343-3569 Victoria Parade, Suva.

The consolidated finoncial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and autharised for issue
on 3l March 2023,

b) Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group during the year were as follows:

Entity Principal Activities

Fijicare Insurance Limited Underwriting of medical, term life, mortgoge protection, wagecare,
personal accident, public liability, funeral benefits, motor vehicle, para-
metric microinsurance, travel and property (under micro insurance
project) insurance risks.

VanCare Insurance Limited | Underwriting of motor and other general insurance risks.

WeCare Pte Limited Investment in properties and real estate.

OmniCare Pte Limited Medical and Diagnostic Centre.

There were no significont changes in the nature of the principal octivities of the Group during the year.

NOTEZ. BASIS OF PREPARATION

a) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated finoncial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention, except for
investment properties ot fair values and financial ossets ot fgir volues. Historical cost is based on the fair
values of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

In the application of IFRS, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
carrying volues of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual
results may differ from these estimaotes.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting esti-
matas dre recognised in the period in which the astimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the perod of the revision and future perieds if the revision offects both current and future penods.
Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have significant effects on the consoli-
dated financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year
are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial infor-
mation satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thersby ensuring that the substance of the Uunder-
lying transoctions or other events is reported.

The areas invalving higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
gre critical to the consolidated financial stotements are disclosed in Note 4.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
b) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in occordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (lFRS') and with the reguirements of the Companies Act, 2015.

¢) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies which are listed in Note 26. Control is achieved when the Holding
Company:

= has power over the investes;

+ is exposed, or has rights, to varicble returns from its involvement with the investee; and

+ haos the ability to use its power to offect its returns.

The Halding Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Holding Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it hos power over
the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activi-
ties of the investee unilaterally. The Holding Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Holding Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

« the size of the Holding Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of other vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the Holding Company, other vote holders or other parties;

« rights arising from other controctual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Helding Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company obtains contral over the subsidiary com-
panies and ceases when the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary companies.

Income and expenses of the subsidiary companies are included in the consolidated statermnent of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Holding Company gains control until the date
when the Holding Company ceases to control subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each compaonent of other comprehensive income are attributable to the owners of the
Holding Company.

All inter-company balances and transoctions between the Holding Company and its subsidiary compa-
nies including any recognised profits or losses have been eliminated on consolidation.

d) Functional and Presentation Currency
Functionol and presentation currency

The Group operates in Fiji and Vanuatu, however the consolidated financial statements are presented in Fiji
dollars, which is the Holding Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CUNT'D}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
e) Basis of Accounting - Going Concern

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors consider the application of the going concern principle to be appropriate in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements as they believe that the plans and strategies put in place by the
Zroup together with the ongoing support of the shareholders, the Group will generate and maintain the
required funding to meet its liabilities and commitments as and when they fall due over the next twelve
months.

f) comparatives

. Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-grouped to conform to changes in presentation in the

current period.
g) Changes in Accounting Policies
A. New standards, amendments and interpretation effective during the year

MNew standards and amendments impacting the Group that have been adepted in the consolidated finan-
ciol statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

= Amendments to IFRS 16 COVIR-19 Related Rent Concession beyond 30 June 202,

Other new and omended standards that hove been adopted in the annual consolidated financial state-
ments for the year ended 31 Becember 2022, but have not had a significant effect on the Group are:

= Amendments to IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - IBOR 'phase 2
B. New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued
by the IASE that are effective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not to odopt early.

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2023:

« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective | January 2023) - In June 2020, the |1ASE issued amendments to
IFRS 17, including o deferral of its effective dote to | January 2023, IFRS |7 Insurance contracts establish-
es the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts
within the scope of the Standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that on entity provides relevant
information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a baosis for users of finan-
ciol statements to assess the effect that insurance controcts hove on the entity’'s financial position,
financiol performonce and cash flows.

IFRS 2 Fingncial Instruments - In relation to insurers, until 31 December 2022, a specific “temporary
examption” from the gpplicotion of IFRS 9 was available "where an insurer's activities are predominant-
ly connected with insurance”. The insurer may continue to.apply 1AS 38 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods up until the pericd commencing 1 January 2023, when it is expected that the new insurance
industry stondard IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” will become applicable.

IFRS 9 Financiol Instruments replaces IAS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
all previous versions of IFRS 8. The standard introduces new reguirements for classification and mea-
surement, impairment, and hedge accounting. Retrospective opplication is required, but comparative
informotion is not compulsory,

» Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Stotement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies;
» Amendments to IAS B Definition of Accounting Estimates; and
» Amendments to 1AS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assels and Uobilities arising from a Single Transaction.
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FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

g) Changes in Accounting Palicies (Cont'd)
B. New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective (Cont'd)

The Group is currently in the process of assessing the impact of these new accounting standards IFRS 9 and
IFRS 17 and at this stage the impact is yet to be determined.

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning | January 2024:

- IFRS 16 Leases (Amendment — Liability in @ Sale and Leaseback);

« IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current): and

« |AS | Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants).

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal aceounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consclidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years prasented, uniess otherwise
statad,

a) Allowance for Doubtful Debts

The Group establishes an allowance far any doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts
individually at year end. Bad debts are written off during the period when they are identified.

The Group pericdicolly assesses whether there is any obiective evidence of impairment Trade and other
receivables are presented net of allowances for doubtful debts, The Group has Individually assessed allow-
ances against individually significant trade and other receivables.

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in
banks and other short term highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

¢) Dividend Distribution

The dividend distribution to the Helding Company's shareholders Is recognised as a liability in consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared by the directors.

d) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing profit or loss after income tax attributable to
members of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year,

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be Issued on the conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

g
.
=
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
e) Expenditure Recognition

Expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred
and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in
maintaining the investment properties and property, plant ond equipment in a state of ocperational service
has been charged to the statements of profit or loss.

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the “function of expenses” methed has been adopted, on the basis thaot it fairly presents the
elements of the Group's performance.

t) Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose for which the financial gssets were ocquired and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after balance date, which are classified as non-current assets. The Group's lcans and receivables:
comprise ‘trode ond other receivables’ os disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
{Note 5}. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified.

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment.
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative finoncial assets with fixed or determinable payments
ond fixed maturity dates that the Group hos the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subse-
quent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are carried ot omortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment

Held-to-maturity investments in commercial bonks and financial institutions by the Group are recorded at
their amortised cost ond not re-measured to market values as they are considered likely to be held to mao-
turity in line with investment objectives and fixed price nature of the investments.

Financiol assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial nssets ot fair value through profit or loss comprises equity investments in listed and unlisted com-
ponies.

Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated ot fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held
for trading if it is acguired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Financiol assets designated
at fair volue through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed and their performaonces are
evaluoted on a fair value basis. Assets in this cotegory ore presented as current assets if they are either
heid for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months.

Financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss are measured initially and subsequently at fair value, and
gains and losses arising from changes in fair volue are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Transoction costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Dividend income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other revenue when the Holding Company’'s right to
receive poyments is established.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

g) Foreign Currency Translations
Transactions and balances

All foreign currency transactions during the financial year are brought to account using the exchange rate
in effect at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items at reporting date are translated at
the exchange rate existing at reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Exchange differences are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

Foreign controlled entity

As the foreign controlled subsidiary company of the Group, VanCare Insurance Limited, is a self-sustaining
entity, its assets and liabilities are translated to Fiji dollar at the average year-end buying and selling
exchange rates, while its revenues and expenses are translated at the average of buying and selling rates
ruling during the year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken to the foreign currency transla-
tion reserve.

h) Impairment of Non-Financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an Indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows ore discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash Tlows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss Immediately, uniess the relevant asset is carried at a revolued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount.of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
ameount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation incregse.

i) Income Tax

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situ-

ations in which applicable tax regulations is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the bosis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANMIES

| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COHT"D}
i) Income Tax (Cont'd)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet lability method in respect of temporary differences:
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets:
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against
which deductible temporary differences or unused tox losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities {uther than as a result of a business combination) which
affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods:
when the asset and ligbility giving rise to them are recognised or settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tox consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current aond deferred tax for the pericd

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the consolidated stotement of profitor
loss except when it relates to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is:
also recognised directly in equity.

Capital Gains Tax

Capital Gains Tax (CGT) is applicable at 10% on capital gains realised on the sale or disposal of ‘capital
assets’ as set out in the Income Tax Act. Accordingly, the Group provides for deferred tax liability that may
arise if capital assets stated ot fair values are ultimately sold or traded.

i) Insurance Contracts
General

All of the general insurance products and reinsurance products on offer, or utilised, meet the definition of
an insurance controct (a controct under which one party, the insurer, occepts significant insurance risk
frem another party, the policyholder, by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain
future event, the insured event, odversely affects the pDIicthIder] and none of the contracts contain
embedded derivatives or are reguired to be unbundled. Insurance contracts that meet the definition of a
financial guaraontee contract are occounted for as insurance contracts. This means thot all of the general
insurance products are accounted for in the same manner.

i) Premium income
Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance contracts.
Premium is recognised as earned on a proportionate basis over the period for which cover is provided

using the 365 days pro-rata method.

The unearned portion of premium is recagnised as an unearned premium liability on the statement of
finoncicl position.




#FijiCare

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

i) insurance Contracts (Cont'd)
i) Reinsurance

Contracts entered into by the Group with Reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group, are classified as reinsurance contracts,

As the reinsurance agreements provide for indemnification by the Reinsurers against loss or liability, rein-
surance income and expenses are recognised separately in the statement of comprehensive income when
they become due and payable in accordance with the reinsurance agreements.

Reinsurance recoveries are recognised as claim recoveries under the statement of comprehensive income.
This is netted off against the claim expenses. Reinsurance premiums are recognised as Reinsurance
Expenses on a proportionate basis over the period for which cover is provided.

Accordingly, a portion of reinsurance premium expense |s deferred and presented as deferred reinsurance
expenses on the consolidated staterment of financial position at the reporting date.

iii) Deferred commission costs

Commission cost paid to agents and brokers associated with obtaining general insurance contracts are
referred to as acquisition cost These costs are presented as deferred commilssion costs and are amortised
and charged to expenses on the same basis as the recognition of premium income. The baolance of the
deferred cormmission costs at the reporting date represents the commission costs relating to unearned
premium.

iv) Provision for outstanding claims

Provision for outstanding claims are stated net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers and are ossessed
by reviewing individual claims. Provision Is assessed after taking into account claim information available
at the time the claim is received or additional information brought to the notice of the Group till reporting
date. Whilst all reasonable steps are taken to ensure that adequate information is obtained, given the
uncertainty in claims provision, it is likely that the final outcome will differ from the original liability estab-
lished.

Provision is also made for insurance claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). Provision for IBNR is also
assessed by the management on an annual basis based on the latest available actuarial valuation report
and recent cloims experience and underwriting results, Valuation Is obtained from independent licensed
actuaries for the adeguacy of provision for claims incurred but not reported on a periodic basis. Actuaries
use appropriate actuarial voluation methods to value the liabilities to help inform the cholce of the most
appropriote method and to help assess the inherent estimation errors. Actuaries selected the method that
gave the higher answer based on the Group’s own data and increased where the benchmark gave a higher
answer and weighted the valuation towards higher side.

Provision is also made for claim administration expenses in accordance with guidelines issued by Reserve
Bank of Fiji.

Claims expenses represent claim payments adjusted for the movement in the outstanding claims liability.
k) Intangible Assets

Computer software Is recorded at cost less accumulated ameortisation and any impairment losses, Amorti-
sation is charged on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives at o rate of 40%. The estimated

useful life and amortisation method Is reviewed at the end of eoch financial year. The omortisation expense
is included under other operating expense in the consolidoted statement of profit or loss.
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ﬂONT'D}
1) Inventories

Inventories consist of medical supplies and consumables. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the First In and First Qut principle and includes:
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.
Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable vari-
able selling expenses.

m) Investment Properties

Investment properties principally comprising land and buildings are held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation, are measured initially at its cost including transaction costs.

Investment properties are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value.at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment losses, Revalua-
tions are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from
those that would be determined using fair volues at the end of each reporting period.

n) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or centains, a legse. 4 contract is, or
contains, a lease if the controct conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

» the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of o physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has o substontive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

» the Group has the right to obtoin substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

» the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset The Group has this right when It has the deci-
sion-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In
rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the
Group has the right to direct the use of the asset if either.

= the Group-has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Group designed the asset ina way that predetermines how and for whot purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the controct to each leagse compoenent on the basis of their relative stand-olone prices.
However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is-a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate.
non-lease components and account for the lease ond non-lease components as a single lease compo-
nent.

Policy applicable as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use gsset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial . amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underly-
ing asset or the site on which it is located, less any leose incentives received.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

n) Leases (Cont'd)
Policy applicable as a lessee (Cont'd)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commence-
ment date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.
The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the leose liability.

The lease liability is Initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate connot be read-
ily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrow-
ing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
« fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or o rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencemeant dats;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantes; and

= lhe exercise price under a purchase option that the Group Is reasonably certain to exarcise, lease pay-
ments inan optional renewal period if the Group Is reasonably certain Lo exercise an extension option,
and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group s reasonably certain not to terminate
aarly,

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured
when there is a change in future lease payments arlsing from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase. extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment |s made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assel has been reduced to zero,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value gssets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease pay-
ments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable as a lessor

When the Group octs as alessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease Is a finance leases or
an operating lease.

To clossify each lease, the Group makes an overall gssessment of whether the lease transfers substantially
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers
certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the ecenomic life of the asset
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

n) Leases (Cont'd)
Policy applicable as a lessor (Cont'd)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it aoccounts for its interests in the heod lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset aris-
ing from the head leass, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a heod lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it clossifies the sub-lease os an operating
lease:

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group opplies IFRS 15 to allecate the
consideration in the contract.

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis
over the legse term as partof ‘other income’.

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period were not different
from IFRS 16. However, when the Group was an intermediate |essor the sub-leases were clossified with refer-
ence to the underlying asset

o) Segment Reporting
Cperating Segment

An operating segment is a compgonent of the Group which may earn revenues and incur expenses and the
operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocaoted to the segment and assess its performance.

Geographic Segment

A geographical segment constitutes the provision of products or services within a particular economic
environment thot are subject to risks and return that are different from thase of segments operating in
other economic environments. The Group eperates in Fiji and Vanuatu.

p) Property, Plant and Equipment

Legsehold improvements, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated deprecia-
tion and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the ocquisition
and installation of the items.

‘Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying omeount er recognised as a separate asset, os appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-rec-
ognised. All other repairs and maintenonce are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on leasehold improvements, plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on
a straight-line basis so as to-write off the net cost or other revalued amount of enoch asset over its expected
useful life to its estimoted residual volue. The estimaoted useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method is reviewed ot the end of each annual reporting period.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

p) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation on assets is calculated on a stroight-line basis over their estimated useful lives using the
following rates:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10% - 40%
Motor vehicles 20%

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains ond losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are taken into occount in determining the results for the year.

q) Provision for Employee Entitlements
Wages and salaries

Liabilities for wages and salaries expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are accrued
up to the reporting date.

Annual leave

The liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. Liabilities for annual leave
are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date and are measured at their nominal values
using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Bonus plans

The Group pays bonuses to employees based on performance of the Group and achievement of individual
objectives by the employees. The Group accrues bonuses where contractually obliged or where there s a
past practice, subject to performance evaluation.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to Fiji National Provident Fund are expensed when incurred.

r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has o present legal or constructive obligation as o result of past
events; itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisicns are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the closs of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likeli-
hood of an cutflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small,
Provisions are medasured at the present value of the expenditures expected Lo be reguired to settle the obll-

gation using a pre-tox rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation.
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ﬂOHT"D}
' 5) Reinsurance Contracts

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for most categories of its insurance poli-
cies. Recoverable omounts are estimated in @ manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision
nndfur reinsurance controct terms.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligation to policyhelders.
t) Finance Income and Finance Costs

The Group's finonce income and finance costs include:
= interest income on advances;
» interest expense on lease liabilities;
* bank and loan edministration charges; and
» impairment losses (and reversals) on investments in debt securities carried at amortised cost.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The "effective interest rate’ is:
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the finan-
cial instrument:to:

* the gross carrying amount of the financial osset; or
* the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not c:redit—impnired} or to the gmortised cost of the liability, Howey-
er, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the omortised cost.of the financiol asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

u) Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the: principal market or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair volue of a
liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is availoble, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price inan
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing informaotion on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques thot maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs ond minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation tech-
nigue incorporates all of the factors that market participants weuld take into account in pricing a transac-
tion.

If an asset or a liobility measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group meagsures
assets ond long positions ot o bid price and liabilities ond short positions at an ask price:

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction

price - i.e.the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair volue.
on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the foir value is evidenced neither by o gquoted

price in aon active market for an identical assat or liobility nor based on a valuation technigue for which any

unebservoble inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instru-

ment is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the foir value on initial

recognition and the tronsaction price. Subseqguently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an

appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the voluation is whally supported by

observable market data or the transaction is closed out.
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

v) Revenue Recognition

The Group receives premium income from policyholders as compensation for underwriting insurance risks.
The Group recognises revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be enti-
tled in exchange for underwriting those insurance risks, using a five-step model for each revenue stream as
prescribed in IFRS 15. The five-step model is as follows:

- jdentification of the contract;

- Identification of separate performance obligations for each good or service;
- Determination of the transoction price;

- Allocation of the price to performance obligations; and

- Recognition of revenue.

Revenue recognition with respect to the Group's specific business activities are as follows:

(i) Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for insurance
contracts. Premium is recognised as earned on a proportionate basis over the period for which cover
is provided using the 365 days pro-rata method. The unearned portion of premium is recognised as
an unsarned premium liabllity on the statement of financial position.

(i) Revenue from the medical centre is recognised upen the delivery of service to patients.

(iii) Dividend income from investments Is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

(iv) Revenue from rendering of management services are recognised upon rendering of services.

(v) Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis. Rental income represents income earned from
renting out of building space.

(vi) Interest income is recognised on o time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
w) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issus of new shaores
or options are shown in equity as o deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

x) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair volue ond subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

Allowance is made on a specific debtor level. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors and default or
delinquency in poyments are considered Indicators that a specific debtor balance is assessed to be
doubtful, Doubtful debts assessed at o collective leve! is based on past experience and data in relation to
actual write-offs.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidoted statement of
profit or loss and aother comprehensive income.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial
re-organisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered Iindicators that a specific debtor
balance iz gssessed 1o be doubtful.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
NOTE3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CUNT'D}

x) Trade Receivables (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
within administration and operating expenses. When o trade: receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance acceunt for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of omounts previously written
off are credited in the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

y) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payobles are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future poyments
resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.using
the effective interest method,

z) Value Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of Value Added Tax (vaT),
except.

i) Where the amount of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense; and

ii} For trade receivables and trade payables which are recognised inclusive of VAT.

The amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as paort of receivobles
or payables.

The VAT component of cash flows arising from operating and investing activities which is recoverable from
or payable to, the toxotion authority is classified as operating cash flows.

NOTE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Iin the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors and the
management are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying omounts of
assets and liohilities thot are: not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates aond associated
ossumptions are based on historical experence and other foctors thot are considered to be relevant.
Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluoted and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events thot are believed to be reasonable under the circumstonc-
es. Revisions to accounting estimates are recagnised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future pericds if the revision offects both
current and future periods.

The Group makes estimaotes and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, oy definition, seldom equal the reloted actual results. The estimates and ossumptions that have o
significant risk of cousing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of ossets and liabilities within the
next finoncial yeor and in future hove been disclosed under the following notes to the consolidated finan-
cial statements:
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial Statements

Note 3(h) - impairment of property, plant and eguipment and investment properties

Note 3(j) (iv) - Provision for outstanding claims
Note 3(j) (i

Note 3(u)

Note 3(x) - Impairment of accounts receivable
Note 3(i) - Deferred tax assets and liabilities

NOTES. REVEMNUE

Gross written premium
Reinsurance premium

Deferred reinsurance, net movement
Unearned premium, net movement

Total revenue, net

NOTES. COMMISSION EXPENSE

Commission expense

NOTE7. OTHERREVENUE

Dividend income

zain on sale of motor vehicle and shares

Interest income
Rental income

Fair value loss on equity investments
Fair value gain on investment properties

Grant income (a)
Unrealised exchange gain

Miscellaneous income, net

Total other revenue, net

(a) The Holding Company entered into a grant agreement with United Nations Capital Development Fund
for receipt of grant relating to Parametric Climate Project. The Parametric Climate Project is designed
to provide immediate monetary relief to those insured members who are covered under the scheme

iv) = Actuarial valuation - claims incurred but not reported
- Fair value measurerment of financial assets and investment properties

2022 202

$ $
50,517,483 38,113,752
(558,058) {870,821)
48959 425 37,242,831
35,2432 65407
(1,635,994) (4,799,031)
48,358,673 32,508,307

$

4 007,417 3,170,489

68,860 45,574
96,465

304,436 447,618
67,887 22,001
(103,177) (29,666)
708,165 400,000
294,631 465,747
92,13 -
141,919 5,302
2,574,834 1,453,041

for loss of income arising out of natural disasters such os cyclones and flooding.

The subsidiary company, VanCare |nsurance Limited entered into a grant agreement with the United

Nation Capital Development Fund for receipt of grant relating to Financing Agreement.
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Financial Statements

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

MNOTE 8. INCOMETAX

Income Tax Rate

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been computed using tax rate of 10% for the
Helding Company, 0% for the subsidiary company, VanCare insurance Limited and 20% fer remaining sub-
sidiories companies. Deferred tax assets and ligbilities hove been computed using tax rate of 20% for the

Group (excluding VanCare Insurance Limited) with change in tax rate from 10% to 20% far the Holding Com-
pony effective from 2023 tox year.

a) Income tax expense

The prima focie income tax payobleon profitis reconciled to the income

tox expense as follows:

Profit before income tax 6,927,325 6,571,881

Primao facle income tax expense B84,37 551,681

Tax effect of:

Non-taxable income (56,886) (B1,288)
Non-deductible expenses and concessions 10,318 2,801
Under provision of income and deferred taxin prior year 37,839 532
Impact of income tox rate change from 10% to 20% 187,581
DTA on tax losses and temporary differences not recognised 120,233
income tax expense 093,566 493,836

Income tox expense comprises movement in:

Current tax abilities 474,316 487 682
Deferred tax assets (77.994) 3,356
Deferred tax llability 587 244 2708

893,566 493,836
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FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTES. [INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

b) Currenttox (liabilities) [ assets

Movements during the year were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year (182,304) 221,701
Tax liobility for the current year (474,318) (487 682)
Advance taxes paid during the year 511,662 -
Transfer from VAT Account - A3.6895
Tax deducted ot source — resident interest withholding tax 33,698 38,882
Balance at the end of the year (1n,272) (182,304)

c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tox assets comprise the estimated future benefit ot future

income taxrate inrespect to the following:

Ditference between Right of Use Asset ond Lease Liabilities 4,331 500
Allowaonce for doubtful debts 10,000 5,000
Provision for employee entitlerments 23,830 10,985
Total deferred tax assets 38,261 16,485

d) Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tox liobilities comprise the estimated future expense at future

income tax and capital gains tox rate in respect to the following:
Difference In cost bose of Investment properties ond plont ond

) _ 658103 142,008
equipment for accounting and income tox purposes
Unrealized gain on investment in unlisted shares 13,018 8,508
Unrealized gain on foreign currency translation 18,423 -
Total deferred tax liabilities 685,544 148,518
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AMD SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

ltade receivables (a)

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other advances (b)
Prepayments
Deposits

Other receivables
Total current trade and other receivables, net
Mon-current

Other advances (b)

Cther receivables

Total non-current trade and other receivables

Financial Statements

12,799,598 10,199,726
(50,000) (50,000)
12,749,598 10,149,726
97,938 114,847
239,040 382,853
64,715 69,755
1,058,154 420,008
14,208,445 1,137,189
26,215

19,388 28,510
19,388 54,725

a) Trade receivables principally comprise of premium amounts cutstanding from policyholders. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and generally settled on 30 - 60 days term.

b) Other advances are secured and subject ta interest.

NOTE 10. FINANCIAL ASSETS

a) Held-to-maturity investments

Current
Term investments with commercial banks and financial institutions

Mon=current

Term investments with commercial bonks, financial institutions and
corporate bonds

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity Investmenls

Investments in Isted companies

Investments in Fiji Gas Limited

2022 2021

$ $

10,277 804 12,973,811
2495122 588,962
3,559,887 3,659,622
89,300 84,335
3,659,287 3,753,857
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FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDNT’D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE10. FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT'D)
c) Valuation of Financial Assets

The Holding Cempany measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the signifi-
cance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level I. fair value on investment in listed companies is calculated using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: fair value on investment in Fiji Gas Limited are caloulated using inputs other than quoted market
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (de-
rived from prices).

Reconciliation of financial assets at fair value through profitor loss 2022 2021

3 )
Bolance at 1 January o, 703,957 405501
Add: Fair value loss on investment in listed [ unlisted companies, net (103,177) (29,668)
Add: Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,507 6,419
Less: Sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (281,807)
Balonce ot 31 Decembber 3,659,287 3753057

MNOTE 11. DEFERRED COSTS

Deferred commission 1,862,414 1,701,532
Deferred reinsurance 102,294 65,407
Total deferred costs 1,864,708 766,939

NOTE IZ. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

lond  Buildings Worlk in progress Total
(s) (s) (s) (s)

Gross carrying value:
Bolance as at | January 2022 4,138,586 1,810,809 -| 5,.949.505
Additions 2,476,404 585,926 70,998| 3,143,328
Fair value gain A2%.000 1,283,165 -l 1,708,165
Bolance ot 31 December 2022 7,040,000 3,680,0004 70,998(10,800,928

In December 2022, investment properties of the Group were revalued through an independent valuation by
registered valuers, Rolle Associates and Professional Valuation Pte Limited. The valuation methodology
adopted by the valuers was Market Value Method.
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" FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDNT’D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

These investmeant properties were valued at 510,730,000, The Group uses valuation technigues that include
voluation assessment and estimates based on observable and non-observable market data and observ-
able internal financial dota to estimate the fair value of investment properties. The directors bealieve that
the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used were appropriate in determining the fair value of
investment properties.

The increase in market value over book value of $1,708,165 has been recorded as an increase in fair value
for investment properties in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
based on management and directors assessment of fair values and taking into consideration the recent
voluations by registered valuers. Furthermore, fair volue gain on investment properties amounting to
$1,708,165 has been recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Deferred Tax Liability at 20% amounting to $341,633 have been recorded on the fair value gain on invest-
ment property

Valuation of Investment Properties

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements;

Level 3: fair value on Investment properties is calculated using valuation technigues that include valuation
gssessment and estimates based on observable and non-observable market dato and cbservable inter-
nol finoncial data.,

NOTE13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lodehon Fumlm:;: :.?3: Motor vehicles
improvements
equipment

(s) (s) (¢) (s)
Gross carrying amount
Balance at | January 202 75,928 1,015,424 217,235] 1,308,657
Additions 45,682 127,506 434,878 609,067
Disposals - (272,768) (173,828) (448,584)
Balance at 31 December 2021 122.680 870,164 478 786 L7120
Additions 40,808 380,976 . 431,784
Balance at 31 December 2022 163,488 1,261,140 A78,286] 1502914
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2021 138 766,228 148,437 815,803
Cepreciation expense 1,800 133,227 58,943 195,070
Disposals - (272.768) (144)84)| (415,950)
Balance at 31 December 2021 3,038 628,689 64,196 693,823
Depreciotion expensze 3,655 115,28] 85,323 214,259
Balance at 31 December 2022 6,693 741,870 168,519 808,182
Net book value
As at 31 December 2021 19,642 243,475 414,090 777207
As at 31 December 2022 156,795 518,170 318,767 984,732
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CUNT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTET14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software

Gross carrying amount

Balance at1January 1,338,439 1,538,804
Additions 252,933 355,231
Disposals - (554,696)
Balance at 31 December 1,592,372 1,339,439

Accumulated amortisation

Balance atlJanuary 895,879 1,192,410
Amaortisation expense 251,605 206,520
Disposals - (503,121)
Balance at 31 December 1,147,384 BS5,878
Net book value 444 988 443,560
NOTEYS. TRADE ANDOTHER PAYABLES

Payoble to reinsurers 601,194 Gl7,857
Other payables and accrued labilities 1,540,082 234,879
Total trade and other poyables 2,141,276 | B52 436

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for reinsurance premium and on-going costs.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally settled on 30 - 90 days term.

NOTE16. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Unearned premiums

Urnearned premiums as at 1 January 17,528,731 12,764,358
Movement during the year, net 1,648,549 4.7714.333
Bolonce as at 3] December 19,177,280 17,528,731

Outstanding claims

Gross outstanding claims as ot | January 3,722,747 3,486,426
Movement during the year, net 3,309,852 236321
Bolance s at 31 December 7,032,608 3,722747
Less: Reinsurance recoveries 10,000 10,000
Dutstanding claims, net 7,022,609 3,712,747
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RN Financial Statements
FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDMT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE1E. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D

Claims administration provision

Claims administration provision as at 1 January 241,334 263,593
Movement during the year, net 08,127 (21259]
Balance as ot 31 December 345,461 241,334

Claimsincurred but not reported

Claims incurred but not reported as at 1 January 3,473,818 3,907,881
Movemnent during the year, net 765,394 (428373)
Cloims incurred but not reported, net 4 244912 3,479.518
Catastrophic provision (a) 167,530 410,131

2 3 e og = e B
Total insurance contract liabilities, net 30,881,792 25,372,481

(@) The subsidiary company, VanCare Insurance Limited is required to make a contingency provision
referred to as a catostrophic provision which is 3% of totol gross premiums under the Insurance Act
of Vanuatu.

NOTE 17. EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Provision for annual leave:

Balance at1 January 118,796 78,418
Additions 45,184 74,621
Leave taken (13,487) (35244)
Balance at 31 December 151,423 8,736

Provision for long service leave:

o Balance at 1 January - 652,590
N | Leave token - (52,590)
g Balance at 31 December 5 =
t Provision for severance:
O BalanceatlJanuary 46,516 34,109
8- Additions 8,275 12,407
x Balance at 31 December 54,791 458,516
E Total current employee entitlements 206,284 165,312
)
=
4{ Issued and paid up capital - 8,607,742 ordinary shares 5,043,662 5,043,662
Final dividend 860,769 430,389
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDNT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE20. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax has been determined after charging the
following expenses:

Auditor's remuneration for:

- Audit fees - BDO 47,800 36,695
- Audit fees — Barrett & Partners 13,746 7,695
- Other services 33,723 23,5582
Consultancy fees 21,685 13,651
Actuariol services 150,384 137,490
Directlors' fees 18,651 N5,22]
Depreciation and amortisation expense 470,455 405,158
Superannuation E5,60B 86,6586
Solaries, wages, training levy and allowances |, 746,332 1,681 438

NOTE2l. MNOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash on hand and balance with banks. Cash and cash equiva-
lents included in the consclidated statement of cash flows comprise the following consclidated state-
ment of financial position amounts:

Cosh on hond ond at bank 16,071,301 12073514
Total cash and cash eguivalents 16,071,301 12,073,514
NOTE22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year used in calculating earnings per share 5,833,758 6,078,045
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used in g ppa 9.9 8 607 742

calculating basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used in g epv 749 8,607,742
calculating diluted earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share — cents 68.94 70.61

N
N
o
)
Q
0)
o
O
-
=
L &
<



89s
#FijiCare .

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDMT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE23. LEASES

As a lessee

(a) Right-of-use assets

Balance at 1 January 53247 195,282
Effect of modification tolease terms (246,546) 300,750
Additions for the year 1,042,565 185,108
Depreciation charge for the year {2956,136) (148,669)
Balonce at 31 December 1,032,354 53247

Lease liabilities Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted

cash flows

Less than one year 37,030 152,300
One tafive years 317,375 456,808
More than five years 1,739,335 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 2427740 609,198

(b) Lease liabilities included in the consclidated statement of
financial position at 31 December

Current 325,144 125,415
Mon-current 733188 420,309
1,062,332 545724
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease llabilities 52,120 11,754
Varioble and short term legse poyments not included in the = B4 457
measurement of lease llabilities
52120 86,211
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
cN | Total cosh outflow for leases 278,41 151,325
N Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows from
g financing activities
t Balance at | Jenuary 545,724 20,191
G Changes from financing cash flows
% Payment of lease liabllities (279,41) (151,325)
o | Total changes from financing cash flows (279,41) (151,325)
E Other changes - liability related
:] Mew lease liabilities 1042565 185,108
cC Change inlease term (246546) 300,750
_E Interest expense of lease llabilities 52,120 1,754
< Interest paid of lease liabilities (82120) (1,754)
Total liability related other changes 796,019 485858
Balance at 31 December 1,062,332 B45.724
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CUNT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

MOTE24. COMMITMENTS

a) Caopital expenditure commitments for software upgrades and for IFRS 17 implementation to holding
campadny, and purchase of equipment to subsidiary company as follows:

Approved but not committed 2685580 900,000

Totol capital expenditure commitments 2,685,580 900,000

b) Operating lease expense commitments contracted for rentals and services are as follows:

Mot later than one year 21,600 103,600
Later than one year but not five years ; 36,600
Later thon five years = 21,350
Total operating lease expense commitments 21,800 161,550

c) Operating lease income commitments contracted for rentals
are as follows:

Mat later than one year 63,702 54,000

Total operoting lease income commitments 63,702 54,000

NOTE25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liobilities exist with respect to the following:

Indemnity guarantees 7580 750
rotal contingent liabilities 750 780

NOTE 26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

VanCare Insurance Limited Vanuaotu 100%
WeCare Pte Limited Fiji 100%
CmniCare Pte Limited Fiji 100%

PN NBLOT=DK
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDNT’D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 27. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Operating segments

The Group operates predominantly in the insuronce industry.

Medical and General Clinical Group
Term Life
Health Insurance Income Total

Revenue Bec 22 21,682,459 7.629,95] 18,881,779 264 484 AR 358,673
Dec 21 17,624,285 7,741,301 714372 - 32508307
Result (Revenue less
Bec 22 (4,325,988) (133,541) 11,380,062 249402 7,189,845
allocated costs)
Dec 2t 2345842 894,318 3,047,906 - §,288,066
Add: Unallocated - other
revenue:
Dividend Income, interest
income, rental income, fair Dec 22 2574834
value gain on equity
. Dec 21 1,453,041
investments and on
Less: Unallocated - Dec 22 3,81.020
expenses and income tax Dec 21 1,663,062
Profit after income tax Bec 27 5,933,759
Dec 21 6,078,045

Segment assets and liabilities

Assets and liabllities cannot be reasonably allocated between the operating segments. Accordingly, this
information hos not been provided under segment information.

Additional information

Similarly, depreciation and other non-cash items cannot be reasonably allocated between the operating
segments. Accordingly, this information has not been provided under segment information.

(b) Geographical segment
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The Group operates in Fijl and Vanuatu.

Revenue from Fiji and Vanuotu operations amounts to $45,586,512 and $2 507677, respactively. Profit after
income tax from Fiji and Vanugtu operations amounts to $4,580,761 and §1,279,308, respectively.
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FIJICARE INSURAMCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CDNT’D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Directors

The nomes of parsons who were directors of the Holding Company at any time during the financial year are
as follows;

Dumith Fernando = Chalrman
Peter McPharson

Avinesh Raju

Jenny Sasto

Sylwvain Flore

(b) The transactions with related parties

Transactions with reloted parties during the year ended 3] December 2022 and 2021 with approximate
transoction values are summarized as follows:

Nature of
Related Party

transaction
Fallon Investment Ple Director related entity Rent expense 84,100 8,81
Limited
Mount Sophia Venture Fiji Director related entity Consultatian 5,153 =
Limited BXpense

(c) Ownership Interests

The ownership interests in subsidiary compaonies Is disclosed in Note 28,

(d) Director Fees

Directars fees of $119,651 (2021: $115,221) was paoid to the non-executive directors

(e) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or
otherwise) of that entity.

During the year, Executive Director, Group Chief Operating Officer, Group Chief Financial Officer, Group Chief
information Officer, Group Chief Marketing Officer, Manager Marketing/Head of Motor, Manager Accounting
& Finance, Claims Manager and Chief Operating Officer - VanCare Insurance Limited were identified as key
management personnel, with the greatest authority and responsibility for the planning, directing and con-

trolling the octivities of the Group.

The remuneration of the key management personnel during the year was as follows:

2022

o~
N
o
©)
Q.
O
(0
O
=)
C
S
s <

Salaries and other short-term employee 1993 392 1307 544
benefits
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]

| FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE28. INSURANCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT

A key risk from operating in the general insurance industry is the exposure to insurance risk arising from
underwriting general insurance contracts. The insurance contracts transfer risk to the insurer by indemnify-
ing the policyholders against adverse effects arising from the occurrence of specified uncertain future
events. The risk is that the actual amount of cldims to be paid In relation to contracts will be different to the
amount estimated at the time o product was designed and priced.

The Group Is exposed to this risk because the price for a contract must be set before the losses relating to
the product are known. Hence the insurance business involves inherent uncertainty. The consolidated entity
alsc faces other risks relating to the conduct of the general insurance business including financial risks.

A fundamental part of the overall risk management strategy is the effective governance and management
of the risks that impaoct the omount, timing aond uncertainty of the cash flows arising from insurance con-
lracts

(a) Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk

The insurance activities primarily involve the underwriting of risks and the management of claims. A disci-
plined approoch to risk management is adopted rather than a premium volume or market share oriented
approach. It is believed this approach provides the greatest long term likelinood of being able to meet the
objectives of all stokeholders, including policyholders, lenders and equity holders.

The risk manogement activities con be broadly separated into underwriting (acceptance and pricing risk),
claims management and investment management. The objective of these risk management functions is
to enhance the longer term financial performance of the overall insurance operations.

The key policies in place to mitigate risks arising from underwriting insurance contracts include the follow-
ing:

g- Acceptance of risk = Insurance and reinsurance policies are written in accordance with local manage-
rment practices and regulations within each jurisdiction. Maximum limits are set for the acceptance of
risk on an individual contract basis. Management information systems are maintained that provide
up-to-date, reliable data on the risks to which the business is exposed at any point in time. Efforts are
made, including plain language policy terms, to ensure there is no misalignment between what policy-
holders perceive will be pald when a policy Is initially sold and what is actually paid when a claim is
made.

Pricing - Statistical models are used which combine historical and projected dato to calculate premi-
ums and monitor claims patterns for each class of business. The data used includes historical pricing
ond cloims analysis for each closs of business as well os current deyvelopments in the respective mar-
kets and classes of business.

Reinsurance - The use of reinsurance to limit exposure to large single claims and the accumulation of
chaims that arise from the same event or the accumulation of similar events: This includes the monitor-
ing of reinsurers’ credit risk to control exposure to reinsurance counterparty default,

Claims management - Initial claim determination is managed by claims officers with the requisite
degree of experience and competence with the assistance, where appropriate, or other party with
specialist knowledge. It is the Holding Company and Group's policy to respond and settle claims quick-
ly whenever possible and to pay claims fairly, based on the policyholder's full entitlements.

(b) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The terms and conditions attaching to insurance contracts affect the level of insurance risk accepted.
Insurance contracts are generally entered into on an annual basis and at the time of entering into a con-
tract all terms and conditions are negotiable or, in the case of renewals, renegotiable. The majority of direct
insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis. Non-standard and long term poli-
cles may only be written if expressly approved by a person with appropricte delegated authority, There are
no special terms and conditions in ony non-standaord contracts that would have o material impoct on the
consolidated financial statements.




MFijiCare

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 29. INSURANCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
(c¢) creditrisk

Financial assets or liabilities arising from insurance contracts are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the amount that best represents the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting
date.

The credit risk relating to insurance contracts relates primarily to premium receivable which is due from
individual policyholders and intermediaries (brokers and agents). The brokers and agents collect premium
from policyholders and remit the monies to the insurer in accordance with contractual arrangements. The
recoverability of premium receivable is assessed and provision is made for impairment based on objective
evidence and having regard to past default experience.

(d) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss (including lost opportunities) resulting from external events
and/or inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems to perform as required. Operational
risk can have overlaps with all of the other risk categories. When controls fail, operational risks can cause
damage to reputation, can have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Group
cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by moni-
toring and responding to potential risks, is able to manage risks.

Operational risk is identified ond assessed on an ongoing basis and the capital management strategy
includes consideration of operational risk. Management and staff are responsible for identifying, assessing
and managing operational risks in accordance with their roles and responsibilities.

(e) Interest rate risk

The underwriting of general insurance contracts creates exposure to the risk that interest rate movemnents
may materially impact the value of the outstanding claims liability. Movement in interest rates impact the
determination of the liability through the selection of discount rates. Discounting the liability is in effect
allowing for future investment earnings on the assets held to back the insurance licbilities.

The funds held to pay outstanding claims are invested principally in fixed rates securities. Moverments in
market intarest rates affect the value of the fixed Interest securities. Hence movements in interest rates
should have minimal impact on the insurance profit for the year due to movement in investment income
on asset backing insurance liabilities offsetting the impact of movements in the discounting rates in the
claims liabilities.

(f) concentration of insurance risk

The exposure to concentrations of insurance risk is mitigated by a portfolic diversified into many classes of
business and by the utilisation of reinsurance.

Concentration risk is particulorly relevant in the case of catastrophes which generally resultin o concentro-
tion of affected policyholders over and obove the norm and which constitutes the lorgest individual poten-
tial financial loss. Catastrophe |losses are an inherent risk of the general insuronce industry that has con-
tributed, and will continue to contribute, to potentially material year-to-year fluctuations on the result of
operations ond financial position. The nature ond level of catastrophe in any period cannot be predicted
accurately but can be estimated through the utilisation of predictive models. Each year, the Company sats
its tolerance for concentration risk and purchaose reinsurance in excess of these tolerances.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE29. INSURANCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
(g) other risk
Reguiatory risk

The Group's profitobility can be impacted by regulatory agencies which govern the business sector in Fiji.
specifically, financial transactions are monitored by Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF) and Reserve Bank of Vanuatu
(RBV), and as an authorised underwriter of insurance risks, the Group is subject to licence and regulatory
control by RBF and RBV,

NOTE 30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is expesed to a variety of financial risks in the normal course of business; market risk {foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictobility of financiol markets ond seeks to minimise
potentiol odverse effects on the Group's financial performaonce,

Risk manaogement is carried out by executive manogement. Executive management identifies, evaluates
and monitors financial risks in close co-operation with the operating units.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such os foreign exchange rotes, interest rate and
equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objec-
tive of morket risk management is to control market risk exposures within ccceptable parameters while
optimising the return on risk.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group does not have significant transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations is minimal.

(i)  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the valus or future cosh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuote becouse
of changes in market interest rates. The exposure to interest rate risk results from the holding of financial

assets and liakbilities in the normal course of business.

Fixed interest rote assets and varioble interest rote liobilities create exposure to foir value interest rate risk.
The Group mitigates interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of instruments

(iii) - Equity price risk

Equity price risk is defined as exposure to movements in investment prices [values, i.e, the dollar effect of a
change in market price [volue of investments. The Group minimizes the risks by:

a) Diversifying the investments portfolio across assets classes;
b) Diversifying the equity and debt portfolios across sectors and securities to the prescribed limit;
c) Proper osset (stock) selection based on relative value after a research process, and

d) Appropriote investments limits that cover osset allocation, concentration, regional location and
CUrrency.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

NOTE 30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CDNT'D}
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of failure by a customer or counterparty to meet its contrac-
tual ebligations. Credit risk is managed at Group ond at individual company level.

Credit risk relating to insurance contracts is disclosed in Note 29(c).

Credit risk also arises from cash at banks and deposits with banks. Deposits are made only with reputable
financial institutions which are regulated by Reserve Bank of Fiji with known sound financial standing,

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Group of
counterparties having similar charocteristics. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the con-
solidated financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk.

(€) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is concerned with the risk of there being insufficient cash resources to meet payment obliga-
tions without affecting the daily operations or the financial condition of the Group. Liquidity facilitates the
ability to meet expected and unexpected requirements for cash. The liquidity position is detived from oper-
ating cash flows, investment portfolios and access to putside sources of liquidity such as bank, reinsurance
arrangements and other sources.

Sound liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the avail-
ability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close-out
market positions. The nature of insurance activities means that the timing and amount of cash flows are
uncertain.

Management of liquidity risk includes asset and liabllity management strategies. The assets held to back
insurance liabilities consist predominantly of held-to-maturity investments. The assets are managed 5o as
to effectively match the maturity profile of the assets with the expected pattern of claims payments.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking focilities and reserve borrow-
ing facilities by continuously maonitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

(Mol il CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group in regards to management of capital adequacy are:

() to comply with Policy Statement 3A "Solvency Requirements for Insurers Licensed to Conduct Life
Insurance Business in Fiji issued by Reserve Bank of Fiji.

(i) to maintain a strong capital bose to cover the inherent risks of the business; and

(ili) to support the future development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value.
The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for capital management, and approves capital policy
and minimum capital levels and limits. The level of target surplus tokes account of monagement assess-
ments of actual risk ond forecasts/stress testing of future capital requirements.
The solvency position of the Holding Company is determined by the Insurance Act of 1988 and governed by
the Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF) and the solvency position of VanCare Insurance Limited is determined by the
Insurance Act No 54 of 2005 and governed by the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu (RBV). The Group reviews its
solvency requirements quarterly and submits the same to RBF and RBVY, for their records.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group complied with the solvency requirements,
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Financial Statements

Lieji=rH MATURITY ANALYSIS

]

The following analysis of monetary ossets and labilities as ot 31 December 2022 and 202 is based on coen-

tractual terms

31 December 22

OV 3 Overl year
ldayto3d months monthstol y
to 5 years
$
Assets
Cosh on hand and at bank 16,071,301 - - - 16.071,301
Trode and ather receivables 10,306,128 3,903,316 19,388 14,228,833
Firy ial tsat fai |
inoncia GEEIE' s at fair value - . 3,659,287 - 3,659,287
through profit or loss
Held-to maturity - : . -
: 2,373,981 7,887,823 2,495,122 12,772,926
investments
16,071,301 12,686,110 15,460,426 2514610 46,732,347
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 2141276 = = 2141276
Current tax lability 1,272 = m, 272
Lease liability - 30,M 217,151 814,470 11062332
Ins tract liabilities,
nsurancecontrac u::_ ilities, . 11616 882 - 2 1,616,982
net of unearned premium
13,788,969 328,423 814,470 14,931,862

31 December 22

Assels

Cash on hand ond ot bank
Trade and other receivables
Financiol assets at fairvalue
through profit orloss
Held-to matunty investments

Liabilities

Trade and other poyables
Curment tax liability

Lease liability

Insurance contraoctliabilities,
net of unearned premium

Over 3 th
1day to 3 months s
to 1year
$ $
12,073,514 . - 12073514
B.670,671 2466518 54,725 11,181,914
= - 3,753,857 3753857
= 2,341,007 10,632,804 688,962 13662773
12073514 1ong78 16,853,279 743687 40682158
- 11852436 - 1852436
- - 182304 182,304
30,711 94,704 420,308 545,724
7,843,730 - 7,843,730
8,726,877 277,008 420309 10424184
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE [

Subsequent to balance date in February 2023, the Government of Fiji had announced that proof of vaccina-
tion or travel insurance for international travellers arriving in the country is no longer required. This will have
an impact on the revenue stream of travel insurance of the Holding Company in the subsequent financial
years.

Mo other matters or circumstances have arlsen since the end of the financial year which would reguire
adjustments to, or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,




Bringing the most
comprehensive care
with our expert team of '
| Medical Practitioners |

Backed By Across

230+ | B3

Super-Specialists Specialities

> g ot odo

. B ,,.\ } )

PUTTING PATIENTS FIRST

Book An Appointment



#FijiCare

SPX LISTING
REQUIREMENTS




#FijiCare

PRI ASCE LS T

December 2022

Avi Raju
6,533,176

Indirect Interest
(Number of Shares)

2. Distribution of ordinary shareholders:

SPX Listing Requirements

1. Statement of interest (direct and indirect) of each director in the share capital of the company as at 31st

Peter McPherson
152,295

Indirect Interest
(Number of Shares)

S\ ==

Distribution of Shareholding Total Total % Holding
Less than 500 13,289 3.16%
601 to 5,000 49 0.94%
5,001 t0 10,000 g 0.73%
10,001 to 20,000 6 1.05%
20,001 tc 30, 000 5 1.32%
30,001 to 40,000 | 0.45%
40,001 to 50,000 0 0.00%
50,001 to 100,000 4 3.25%
100,001 to 1,000,000 3 13.19%
Over 1,000,000 | 756.90%
Total 13,367 100%
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ESUMANC R LEMITEDY SPK ﬁsting Em uirements

SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CONT'D]

3. Disclosure on the trading results of the subsidiary company under section 51.2 (x)

a) Country of Operation and Incorporation: Vonuatuy

VANCARE INSURANCE LIMITED
2022 200
$ s
Revenue 2.507.677 251,713
Other income 144,082 17,764
Less:
Depreciation and amortisation (38.608) (59,878)

Interest expense - =

Other expense (1,333,843) (952.675)
Incorme tax expense

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 1,278,308 1,506,824

2022 20
Total Assets 7,046,454 6,333,808
Total Liabilities 2762817 2,666,084
Shareholders Equity 4,283,837 3,667,225

b) Country of Operation and Incorporation: Fiji

WECARE PTE LIMITED

2022 2021

$
Ravenus 38,878 A7
Other income 338,165 -
Less!

Depreciotion and amortisation = =

Interest expense (20,287) -
Other expense (126,055) (g,412)
income tox expense (715,374) 1,053
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 515,327 (4.212)
Total Assets 222175 3,725,418
Total Liabilities 1,246,064 4630
Shareholders Equity 10,676,115 3,720,788

A=K
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CONT'D]

3. Disclosure on the trading results of the subsidiary company under section 51.2 (x) (Cont'd)

c) Country of Operation and Incorporation: Fiji

OMMICARE PTE LIMITED

Ravenue 428,572 e
Cther income = =
less:

Depreciation and amortisation (70,832) -
Interest expense (8,739) -
Cther expense (795,101) {60,583)
Income tax expense (1217} 1Zn7
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for tha year (458,217) (48,468)

Total Assets 1.029,373

Total Liabilities 681,669

Shareholders Equity
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CONT'D]

4. Top 20 Shareholders

Az of 3]st December 2022, the top 20 shareholders held B121,748 shares which is equal to 895.17% of the totol
issued 8,607,742 fully poid shares. R

MOUNT SOPHIA VENTURES
(FII) PTE LMITED
8533176

@ ©

PLATINUM INSURANCE UNIT TRUST OF FLI STRONGHOLD
LIMITED (Trustee Company) LTD INVESTMENT INC
507, -:':49 475,914 |5” 205

@@O %OO

TUTANMEKA! IMVESTMENTS FHL MEDHA LIGKTED  FHL ,,,__,

TEES LIMIT |. AT S M JRY UM CATHC AR FAC SECRETAR
LIMITEE FiL Fuina HOLDINGS UNIT F'.'__n'l L 38893 4407
52,733 TR 730 55 766
EN ELING DeCEANLL MARIST SOl 4| _I DROCIL A CiPMENT Jivaitaa T SCHULTZ AKISAT
'-' Gag :"4’ Wi l_,E H--l-l:l-' B TUICHROLA ! 20,000 Eu':t_
22581 :;-1-:'!

GRIFFON EMOSE HOMNWING WILLIAM YEE JULLANME VERMA FaZal KHaN

17,515 12983 0,848 &S
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CONT'D]

5. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (xiv):

H Summary of Key Financial Resuits for the Previous Five Years (Consolidated)

N
N
O
N
=
o
Q.
O}
o
O
=
c
c
<<
o
=
'F

SPX Listing Requirements

Net Profit [ (Loss) after tax 3,458,967 4,404,908 1,587,328 6,078,045 5,833,759
Current Assets 28,327,378 34,581,358 34,991,310 41,727,544 465,191,332
MNon - Current Assets 3,623,880 4268115 3,880,198 8462915 15,825,843
Total Assets 31,851,259 38,849,513 38,871,508 50,190,459 62,017,175
Current Liabilities 20247477 23,150,505 22,327,243 27697928 33,748,768
Mon - Current Labilities 146,636 349,404 201,51 568,827 1,422,732
Total Liabilities 20,394.113 23,499,909 | 22,528,754 | 28,266,755 35,172,500
Shareholders Equity 1,457,146 15,349,604 16,342,754 21,923,704 | 26,844,675

6. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (xv) (a):

Dividend declored per share:

Dividend per share

0.04

0.08

0.08

0.05

0.10

7. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (xv) (b):

Earnings [ (loss) per share (Consolidated)

Dividend declored per share:

Cents per share

41.14

5155

1856

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share

Cents pershare

4114

5155

18.56

70.8

88.84

8. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (xv) (c):

Net tangible asset per share:

Cents per share

.86

3.07
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CONT'D]

9. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (xv) (d):

Share Price during the year (Cents per share)

Highest 8.25
Lowest g.62

on 30t pecember

e
]
L.l'

10. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (viii):

Mesetings of the Board

Number of meetings No of meetings
entitled to attend apology given
Mr. Dumith Fernando 4 4 N/A
Mr. Avi Raju 4 4 N/A
Mr. Peter McPherson B 3 1
Ms. Jenny Seeto 4 4 N/A
Mr. Sylvain Flore 4 4 N/A
Company Secretary
Mr Victor Robert 4 4 N/A

The Boord met 4 times during the financial year ended 315t December 2022,

A=K
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS [CDNT’D]

1. Disclosure under Section 51.2 (ix):

SPX Listing Requirements

LISTED SECURITIES QUANTITY CURRENT VALUE TOTALVALUE
ATLANTIC & PACIFIC PACKAGING COMPANY LIMITED (APP) 23,000| § 34| S 78,200
RB PATEL GROUP LIMITED (RBG) 312500 S 324| $ 1012500
COMMUNICATIONS (FiJi) LIMITED (CFL) 35000| S 69| s 241,500
AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED (ATH) 176,396 S 2| s 352,792
THE RICE COMPANY OF FiJI LIMITED (RCF) 22000| S 105| S 231,000
FIJI TELEVISION LIMITED (FTV) 12085| S 225| s 27,19
FMF FOODS LIMITED (FMF) 191,147 S 189] s 361,268
VB HOLDINGS LIMITED (VBH) 3,143 s 75| & 23,573
PLEASS GLOBAL LIMITED (PBP) 63,)69| S 33| $§ 208425
TOYOTA TSUSHO (SOUTH SEA) LIMITED (TTS) 10,000 S 1583| § 158,300
VISION INVESTMENTS LIMITED (VIL) 50,000| S 411 § 205500
KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED (KFL) 124738 S 1| s 124,738
PORT DENARAU MARINA LIMITED (PDM) 250,000 S 214| § 535,000
TOTAL 1,273,168 $ 3558987

UNLISTED SECURITIES QUANTITY CURRENT VALUE TOTAL VALUE

THE FlJI GAS COMPANY LIMITED

3,310

$

30| s

99,300

TOTAL

3,310

S

88,300
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SPX Listing Requirements
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AviRaju Jenny Seeto Peter McPherson Sylvain Flore
Ersrutiee Director indepandsnt Drector Noar-Esscutive Director Independant Diractos

COMPANY SECRETARY

Victor Robert

REGISTERED OFFICE LAUTOKA OFFICE SHARE REGISTER

Heod Offica - Suva FijiCora Insaranca Limited Cantral Share Ragistry Pte Limited
FiiCora insuronca Limited Ground Floor, Coneqrowesrs Shop 1 and 11, Sobrina Building,
Lewel 9, FNPF Plocs, Building, Victorio Parode, Suvol

343-359 Victorio Porode, Suva, Fiji. 75 Drasa Avenue, Loutokao, Fijl GPO Box TIGES

PO Box 15808, Suwa, FIL Phone: 666 0200 Sunva, Fiji

Phone: 3302 717 | Foe: 3302119 marhiido@fijicore comfj

customercore@fijicore.com ] choya@fijicore.com.fj

wanwfificore.com.f wwnaificorecconm
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Secure yourself against natural
disasters through Pacific’s first
PARAMETRIC MICROINSURANCE
CLIMATECARE

FijCare offers comprehensive range of
Innovative Insurance Products

i_r.'
Motor EQ L
Insurance Microinsurance @
ﬂ Mortgage g
WaghtEe B Public Liability g
all

Q1570 330 2717 e @ www.fijicare.com.fi (f Iv]in]l®’

Health
Insurance

Covid-19 Travel

Insurance Term Life

Personal
Accident

< € @
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CONTACTUS

FijiCare Insurance Limited
Level 9, FNPF Ploce, 343-359
Victoria Parade,Suva, Fiji.
PO Box 15808, Suva, Fiji.

&= 3302 7117

I& 3302 19
EE customercare@fijicare.com.fj
@ www.fijicare.com.fj

 BFijiC

are

ISEURANCE LIMITED




